

Tennessee Board of Medical Examiners Development Committee Monday January 24, 2022

MINUTES

The Development Committee meeting of the Tennessee Board of Medical Examiners was called to order at 3:25 p.m. in the Poplar Room, Ground Floor, Metro Center Complex, 665 Mainstream Drive, Nashville, Tennessee 37243 by Dr. Melanie Blake serving as Chair.

Committee members present Stephen Loyd, MD, Committee Chair (by phone)

Melanie Blake, MD

Deborah Christiansen, MD

Mr. Robert Ellis, Consumer Member

Staff present: Rene Saunders, MD, Medical Consultant, BME

Angela Lawrence, BME Executive Director Francine Baca-Chavez, Deputy General Counsel

The meeting was called to order by Dr. Blake with a roll call of members and staff present. Having determined a quorum with four members present, Dr. Blake opened the meeting with the first agenda item regarding the TFQPH Opioid Education proposal presented by the Tennessee Medical Association (TMA). Ms. Beth Lentchner presented a proposal on developing an opioid prescribing course and requesting a grant funding of \$378,005 annually over a three-year period. The proposal comes from a 501C3 organization named the Tennessee Foundation for Quality Patient Healthcare (TFQPH) established in 2005 by the TMA. TFQPH was developed to create and administer programs for quality healthcare in Tennessee. The proposal before the Committee was to promote an online opioid prescribing course for licensees. While the Committee agreed with the idea of the proposal the Board does not have a resource to provide the funding needed. Ms. Baca-Chavez informed the Committee that discussion had taken place between the TMA and Assistant Commissioner Jennifer Putnam concerning funding. Ms. Putman suggested the Board to not endorse funding out of fear of endorsing one course over another, as well as budgetary constraints. Ms. Putnam did offer ways the Board could assist with course by listed it as an approved course on the website and sending email blast to licensees with upcoming dates of the course availability. Mr. Ellis suggested reaching out to other profession on a joint funding effort of the proposal. Ms. Baca-Chavez will investigate a potential process for the Board to develop criteria ensuring courses are covering the subject matter approved by the Board. Dr. Loyd will continue working with the TMA to explore other ways of funding this endeavor. The second agenda item to discuss and act regarding a presentation on National Institutes of Health (NIH) Covid-19 Treatment guidelines. Dr. Blake presented a PowerPoint presentation on treatment guidelines which included statistical data. The data was taken from

the Department of Health website, NIH and the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Dr. Blake's presentation also touches on the difference of misinformation and disinformation and stressed that licenses utilize these and other resources as guidelines in the treatment of Covid-19. There was no action required concerning this agenda item. The third agenda item was to discuss and act regarding definitions of Covid-19 misinformation and disinformation. Ms. Baca-Chavez amended the policy to add definitions to include the authority on TCA 4-5-102(12)(B)(iii). The amended policy will be provided to Government Operations clarifying the definitions as requested. After review and discussion of the proposed amended policy, Mr. Ellis made a motion to approve the amended policy for clarification purposes. The motion was seconded by Dr. Christiansen. The motion passed. The fourth agenda item was to discuss and act regarding Public Chapter 328 licensure Rules 0880-02-.03 through 0880-02-.08. Ms. Baca-Chavez informed the Committee that Dr. Saunders completed many of the amendments before them for review. After review and discussion of the amendments presented by Ms. Baca-Chavez, Dr. Christiansen made a motion to approve the amendments made on pages 4 and 5. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ellis. The motion passed. The fifth agenda item to discuss and act regarding Sexual Misconduct Policy. Dr. Loyd presented the draft proposal of the policy that he, Dr. Baron and Ms. Baca-Chavez worked together on for Ms. Baca-Chavez to draft. After discussion and review of the changes, Dr. Christiansen made a motion to approve the proposed policy. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ellis. The motion passed. The sixth agenda item to discuss and act regarding out of state telehealth providers of buprenorphine. Dr. Loyd informed the Committee that an update has been made the buprenorphine Rules and guidelines and that there are at least eight (8) telehealth providers currently operating in Tennessee. Dr. Loyd provided some statistical information concerning the OBOT clinics violations to the Rules. After some discussion complaints would need to be filed to address the specific violations. The was no action taken concerning this agenda item by the Committee at this time. The seventh agenda item to discuss and act regarding Board participation at Professional Boundaries and Proper Prescribing courses. Dr. Blake presented this subject matter asking if it is feasible for the Board to investigate the subject matter of these type courses to ensure they meet the intent of the Board requiring licensees to attend. Ms. Baca-Chavez suggested that a Board member could attend a course on their own and report back to the full board. Or obtain information from provides by inviting them to the Board meeting to present an overview of the concerning course content. The eighth and final agenda item to discuss and act regarding three (3) Advisory Ruling requests. The first two request were similar too several previously received request. Dr. Deborah Gross, MD requested to have the ability to conduct the 30-day site visit electronically through Zoom. Since a remote site visit cannot occur through videoconference technology. Dr. Glenn Webb, MD requested clarification on where the clinical site visit must take place when both the supervising physician and the supervisee practice from home via telemedicine. Dr. Webb also asked if the site visit can be conducted by videoconferencing? The Committee was provided copies of previous request and voted to remain consistent with previous responses. Ms. Baca-Chavez will present a proposed response to be presented to the full Board for consideration. Dr. Christiansen made a motion to follow the current rule and deny the request of both Dr. Gross and Dr. Webb. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ellis. The motion passed. The third request from Dr. Thomas Higgins, MD previously submitted a request concerning an exemption from Rule 0880-2-.14(c) to allow prescribing of amphetamines for hypersomnia, in November which was granted. Dr. Higgins will be retiring in April and is now requesting the requested previously granted to him be extended to the physician(s) that will takeover the care of his patients upon his retirement. Advisory Ruling request only apply to the licensee submitting the request; therefore, the other physician(s) would be required to submit their own Advisory Ruling request. Ms.

Baca-Chavez informed copies of the previous response to Dr. Higgins and will present a proposed response to be presented to the full Board for consideration. Mr. Ellis made a motion to have the physician(s) taking over the care of his patients will need to submit their own Advisory Ruling request. The motion was seconded by Dr. Christiansen. The motion passed. Having to public comment, the meeting adjourned at 6:18pm.